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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's Hearing of Civil

          4  Service and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabbo and I

          5  welcome you all here.

          6                 At this point let me make a couple of

          7  introductions.  To my right, our Legal Counsel

          8  Harold Gates, and to my left also Legal Counsel

          9  Elisa Chae.  I want to thank Joan Povolny, our

         10  Policy Analyst, Jeff Gottlieb, my Legislative Aide

         11  and the Sergeant-At-Arms today for making this

         12  Hearing possible, and today is really part II of a

         13  two-part Hearing regarding workplace safety.  The

         14  first Hearing was held on December 4th and that had

         15  to do, basically, with workplace violence. Today's

         16  Hearing we're going to be centering on workplace

         17  injuries.

         18                 Situations regarding injuries can

         19  include fatal and non-fatal injuries and illnesses

         20  and some of the illness cases are quite difficult

         21  because some of the illnesses don't take effect

         22  until years later, until after the cause of the

         23  illness is first experienced by the employee.  An

         24  unsafe workplace leads to, as we can all guess,

         25  decreased work efficiency, low morale, and a
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          2  negative financial impact, both on the employee and

          3  the employer.

          4                 So this Committee is intent about how

          5  we can improve our City's workforce, workplace

          6  environment in terms of safety.  And I look forward

          7  to the discussion today with our witnesses.

          8                 Our first panel, representing the

          9  Administration, is John Sweeney, Chief of the

         10  Workers' Compensation Division for the Law

         11  Department.

         12                 Mr. Sweeney, I appreciate your time

         13  here today. Mr. Sweeney, would you please also

         14  introduce your co-witness today?

         15                 MR. SWEENEY: I'd like to introduce

         16  Andrea Burger, on my right, she's a colleague of

         17  mine from the Law Department.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I thank you both

         19  for being here and giving testimony.  I appreciate

         20  it.

         21                 MR. SWEENEY: Thank you,

         22  Councilperson.  I appreciate you inviting me to

         23  speak today.  As you said, I'm Chief of the Workers'

         24  Compensation Division at the New York City Law

         25  Department and my office assisted in the preparation
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          2  of the Annual Report of Workers' Compensation Claims

          3  for New York City Employees for 2005.

          4                 The report was created pursuant to

          5  Section 12:127 of the Administrative Code of the

          6  City of New York, otherwise known as Local Law 41.

          7  The Report contains a compilation of all Workers'

          8  Compensation claims, indexed by the New York City

          9  Law Department during 2005.  It contains records for

         10  all entities whose Workers' Compensation Claims are

         11  administered by the Law Department.  Those entities

         12  are the City of New York, the New York City Health

         13  and Hospitals Corporation, the Department of

         14  Education of the City of New York, the City

         15  University of New York and the New York City Board

         16  of Elections.

         17                 In accordance with Section 12:127,

         18  the report includes a breakdown of the expenses

         19  paid, a list of specific claims for each agency, as

         20  well as a type and location of injuries. This is the

         21  first year such a report has been issued.  Future

         22  reports will contain year-to-year comparisons of the

         23  information compiled.  A summary of the costs

         24  incurred on the claims by Agency is provided at the

         25  end of each section of the Report.  These costs
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          2  include wage replacement, medical costs, penalties,

          3  as well as overall costs for the Agency.  Also

          4  listed are the number of claims filed by each

          5  Agency.

          6                 This Report was delivered to The

          7  Mayor, the Comptroller, the Speaker and the Public

          8  Advocate on April 28, 2006. In addition, pursuant to

          9  City charter, electronic copies of the report were

         10  delivered to the Department of Records and paper

         11  copies were submitted to the Municipal Reference

         12  Research Center.  The Report is accessible on the

         13  Department of Records website under Government

         14  Publications/Labor Relations.

         15                 I'd like to thank the City Council

         16  and the Members of the Civil Service and Labor

         17  Committee for the opportunity to appear today and

         18  I'd be happy to answer any questions you might have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Sweeney.  Ms. Burger, thank you very much.

         21  Let me first also mention that Council Member Mike

         22  Nelson was here, unfortunately he had to leave for a

         23  medical situation.  Thank you for his time here. I

         24  will introduce colleagues as they come along.

         25                 First, since you kicked it off, your
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          2  testimony about the report, this is the report here

          3  and I'm guessing it's not the pocket addition.

          4                 MR. SWEENEY: It's not the electronic

          5  edition, either.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  It is

          7  500 pages long, and let me first kick off by saying

          8  that I appreciate whatever work went into this

          9  report.  I want to thank the Administration for

         10  doing that and, obviously, holding up their side of

         11  the requirement based on the piece of legislation.

         12  But a couple of questions with regards to the

         13  Report.  Because of its density, and because I

         14  understand no printed version of the report, it was

         15  basically online, it was basically available online,

         16  correct?

         17                 MR. SWEENEY: Or in the Municipal

         18  Library.  The printed version, 4 copies of the

         19  printed version were deposited in the library

         20  pursuant to the charter.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  I'm

         22  going to make a request that, and again, this is

         23  being the first one we understand that with the

         24  first of everything it sets the benchmark and

         25  obviously in years to come we can compare this data
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          2  to the subsequent years.  I'm going to request that

          3  there be an Executive Summary, because, what I found

          4  was, without an Executive Summary and a very, I

          5  guess, less than detailed index, it made it quite

          6  difficult to look either at a certain Agency or see

          7  a trend and that's really the purpose of a report

          8  like this, is to basically track a trend that we may

          9  be able to curtail certain costs to the City or

         10  certain illnesses that may be existing in either an

         11  Agency or a place so the bottom line is an Executive

         12  Summary might have helped.

         13                 So, again, I am going to make that

         14  request in subsequent reports that we have an

         15  Executive Summary.  I understand the Administrative

         16  costs with regards to Workers' Comp claims and based

         17  on this report, is over $4 million, is that correct?

         18                 MR. SWEENEY: That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Whenever we talk

         20  about Workers' Compensation, obviously, it means

         21  there is a cost price tag that effects the City in a

         22  negative way, correct?

         23                 MR. SWEENEY: Certainly.  There is a

         24  lot of money involved.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Did you find
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          2  this report useful?

          3                 MR. SWEENEY: Well, the report -- I

          4  think, actually, most of the information in the

          5  report was information that was available to my

          6  office beforehand because we're involved in the --

          7  maybe I tell you exactly what we do.  My division,

          8  the Workers' Compensation Division of the Law

          9  Department is in the business of administering

         10  Workers' Compensation claims for all City employees.

         11                 So, what that means is, when somebody

         12  has an injury, that claim comes to us and we do

         13  whatever is required.  Set up a medical exam, make

         14  payments, in some cases if there is a dispute,

         15  engage in litigation.  So, my office is intimately

         16  involved in this.  A lot of this information is

         17  already available to my office. I think the value in

         18  this report is that, for the first time, this

         19  information is now available to the general public,

         20  it's available to the Council, it's available to

         21  outside parties, it's available to anyone who has an

         22  interest in this type of thing and it would allow

         23  anybody who has an interest to take a look at one or

         24  more sections of the report and come up with their

         25  own conclusions about.  For example, someone could
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          2  take a look at a particular Agency and say there are

          3  a lot of back injuries at the Department of X.  I

          4  wonder what's going on.  And that's the real value

          5  of this report, in that's it's not something that

          6  only a handful of people have access to, but that

          7  it's public, it's on the website, anybody can look

          8  at it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I appreciate

         10  that point, Mr. Sweeney.  It's a good point to make

         11  that we hope that subsequent to even this Hearing we

         12  will digest this information hopefully it becomes a

         13  useful tool in again tracking certain illnesses.

         14  But you said "somebody".  Is anybody in the

         15  Administration, is it their intent to go through

         16  this and track those illnesses in an attempt to save

         17  themselves some money, obviously, in the City.  I

         18  would hate to think that this report was generated

         19  just because a piece of legislation said you had to

         20  do so.

         21                 MR. SWEENEY: Right.  Well, I can tell

         22  you, that's not something that my office is --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: -- Not

         24  necessarily your office, but maybe somebody within

         25  the City administration.
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY: -- I, to be honest, I

          3  don't know the answer to that question.  I can tell

          4  you that the report was delivered to the four

          5  elected officials that were supposed to receive it,

          6  and any one of them may be doing something with it

          7  right now but I don't have any, you know, first-

          8  hand information as to that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Like I said,

         10  and then I just want to reiterate: I would hate to

         11  think that this report was generated just to solve

         12  or satisfy a piece of legislation.  I hope it

         13  becomes a useful tool, either we can chip away at

         14  that $4 million administrative costs of the Workers'

         15  Comp cases, money that the City expends in relation

         16  to Workers' Comp cases, and for the safety of our

         17  workforce, both private and public, that we can use

         18  this tool to do that sometime in the near future and

         19  again, I look forward to working with you and others

         20  in the Administration.

         21                 The Administrative costs of $4

         22  million, what are the costs, or price tag, would you

         23  say in relation to the report or outside the report

         24  would you say is also associated with workplace

         25  illnesses?
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY: Well, the report, as you

          3  are probably aware, this report only tracks new

          4  injuries that happened in 2005, so the costs

          5  associated with those injuries are fairly minimal

          6  today.  However, I can tell you, in the normal

          7  course of a year's, let's say the last few fiscal

          8  years, in terms of wage replacement, our costs have

          9  been over $100 million a year and in terms of

         10  medical, I would say roughly between $30 and $35

         11  million a year. And that's been fairly steady for

         12  the last three --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: -- That was my

         14  question, you have seen no severe or drastic

         15  increases or decreases --

         16                 MR. SWEENEY: -- Modest increases, 1

         17  or 2% increases but no, in the last few years we

         18  have not seen substantial increases.  That, of

         19  course, could all change very quickly.  If the

         20  Workers' Compensation rates are increased as is

         21  likely to happen soon, there'll be a change.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The question of

         23  claims against the City for injuries, again, I just

         24  want to be clear.  Drastically increased, decreased

         25  or stayed the same from year prior.
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY: We've actually seen a

          3  decrease in claims over the last, say, 8 years.  In

          4  the most recent year, if you add up, now when you

          5  say the City there's like 5 different entities in

          6  there, that pile of paper there represents between

          7  15 and 16 thousand individual claims.  I can tell

          8  you offhand the number of claims has gone down in

          9  recent years.  We had, our highest year that I

         10  recall was FY 1998 I think we had 24,000 claims and

         11  as I said last year was less than 16,000.  So in

         12  terms of numbers of injuries we're actually doing

         13  very well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you feel that

         15  there are ways that we can chip away at the amount

         16  of money that the City spends for Workers'

         17  Compensation or workplace injury issues.  Are there

         18  ways, alternatives --

         19                 MR. SWEENEY: I'm sure there are ways

         20  you can save some money, although I wouldn't go out

         21  on a limb and say you could save huge amounts of

         22  money because I think right now we're fairly prudent

         23  in how we spend our money and not spending money

         24  that doesn't need to be spent.  In terms of

         25  preventing accidents, there are probably some
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          2  accidents that could be prevented and there are

          3  probably others that can't be prevented and that's

          4  something you really, I think, have to look at

          5  Agency by Agency because you can't use the same

          6  standard or the same training for a Correction

          7  Officer and a Nurse, they just do such different

          8  things.  I think the best way to focus on that is

          9  to, for example, take some of the data in the report

         10  if you worked in the Department of Correction and

         11  take a look at it and see if you see a trend such as

         12  a lot of accidents are happening at this location,

         13  then maybe do a little further study to see if you

         14  can find out what's going on and if you can fix it.

         15  But, I caution the Committee that, I don't think

         16  there's any quick fix where you're going to be able

         17  to save millions and millions of dollars.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's going to be

         19  interesting, again as we digest this, to see where,

         20  if trends do exist.  You mentioned Agency by Agency

         21  being different.  In your opinion, do you think that

         22  in the future we can establish maybe an oversight

         23  Agency to make sure that each Agency is doing what

         24  they're supposed to do, in light of what is supposed

         25  to be done --
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY: That's certainly a

          3  possibility.  It's something -- It's a policy

          4  decision.  That's not something for me to make.

          5  That's certainly not -- it would make sense to have

          6  something like that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, my only

          8  concern is that, again, each Agency doing their own

          9  tracking this information, we're probably going to

         10  be discussing today probably an issue of under

         11  reporting.  Now, certain injuries or illnesses are

         12  not reported as much and again my concern is that if

         13  each Agency is doing their own then there's no

         14  oversight.

         15                 MR. SWEENEY: Yes, I think you need

         16  both.  I think each Agency has to do their own and

         17  then perhaps, another Agency looks at everybody.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You had

         19  mentioned that this information was already

         20  available, correct --

         21                 MR. SWEENEY: -- I said that most of

         22  that information was in my office in one form or

         23  another.  It wasn't available, so to speak, until we

         24  published it like this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And it will be
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          2  an annual report delivered to the 4 entities of the

          3  government what month of the year?

          4                 MR. SWEENEY: By May 1st of the year,

          5  so in the next few month the report for 2006 will be

          6  published, with your suggestion that we include an

          7  Executive Summary, we certainly can include that and

          8  we can certainly, if necessary, meet with you,

          9  members of your committee to talk about anything

         10  else you think would be useful in terms of modifying

         11  the report.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Executive

         13  Summary, when, just to let me be very clear, please,

         14  I know that the report and your testimony both

         15  mention that there will be a year- to- year

         16  comparison sheet and that's really not what I mean,

         17  just so I'm clear, as an Executive Summary.

         18                 MR. SWEENEY: I understand.  That'

         19  something different altogether.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  Do you

         21  have any idea basically, each Agency doing their own

         22  thing as far as tracking illnesses, do you have any

         23  idea which Agency may be more prevalent or prone to

         24  injuries than others?

         25                 MR. SWEENEY: Well, I suppose, I mean
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          2  you look at the numbers and say offhand, the Fire

          3  Department has about 1,500 injuries a year for EMS

          4  workers.  It's a lot of injuries, but then again,

          5  you look at the nature of their job, and it's the

          6  kind of job where you're apt to get injured so, you

          7  know, the analysis tends to be somewhat different as

          8  you move from Agency to Agency.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Given their role

         10  or responsibilities, of course.  But take for

         11  instance an Agency like DOT, different than Fire

         12  Department or Police Department, they're obviously

         13  not in the line of duty of danger or something like

         14  that but we find out based on even some of our

         15  previous Hearings based on workplace violence that

         16  some of the highway workers are in a situation that

         17  their job may call them to be in a high risk

         18  situation.

         19                 MR. SWEENEY: Absolutely.  DOT has a

         20  significant number of Workers' Compensation claims,

         21  although they're not dealing with any kinds of

         22  criminals, they're out there.  People occasionally

         23  get hit by cars, they're digging holes in the

         24  street, they get injured.  DOT represents a fair

         25  number of claims that we do.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Other claims

          3  that come through your department, what's prevalent?

          4    What kind of injuries, what kind of claims are

          5  prevalent?  Is there 1 that sticks out in your mind?

          6                 MR. SWEENEY: The most common

          7  individual injury will be a back injury.  That's

          8  pretty much true across the board. Now whether

          9  that's 60% or something like that, don't hold me to

         10  that but it's the most significant injury is the

         11  back injury. After that, it drops off and the types

         12  of injuries tend to be a little more diverse, like

         13  because you'll injure an arm or you'll injure a leg

         14  here and there but backs are very, very common.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I know that we

         16  had done a Hearing earlier in the year regarding 9-

         17  11 and the ill effects of 9- 11 and those cases are

         18  just now coming to fruition.  I think in the years

         19  to come we're going to get some more.  These are the

         20  kind of, again, this is really a separate category

         21  to an extent but, while we are talking about

         22  workplace injuries, and illnesses I should say.  Do

         23  you see these cases on the rise as well?  And how in

         24  the next couple years do you see them increasing?

         25                 MR. SWEENEY: So far, I wouldn't say
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          2  that they are on the rise, we have a pool of them,

          3  it's not a large pool given the number --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: -- And if I may

          5  interrupt, I'm sorry, can you just give us a number,

          6  roughly, how many in the pipeline?

          7                 MR. SWEENEY: I believe we have about

          8  1,200 cases that have been filed and about 300 of

          9  them have actually resulted in Workers' Compensation

         10  benefits.  Perhaps that's something that's not

         11  apparent to everyone.  Maybe I should clarify.  We

         12  find across the board in Workers' Compensation that

         13  about 3 out of 4 claims that are filed do not result

         14  in either lost time from work or medical treatment.

         15  So that, all the money we end up paying out is on

         16  25% of the claims that come in the door.  And those

         17  statistics are roughly the same in the September 11

         18  cases.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm going to go

         20  back to a question on Agencies.  I'm going to ask

         21  it, I don't know if I'm going to get an answer, but,

         22  in dealing with the different Agencies, do you see

         23  Agencies handling workplace illness and workplace

         24  injuries differently?

         25                 MR. SWEENEY: Yes, certainly.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you see that

          3  there are certain Agencies that could use a little

          4  improvement in the way they treat workplace injuries

          5  and workplace illnesses?

          6                 MR. SWEENEY: Yes, I think a lot of

          7  Agencies could use a little bit of improvement.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Would you

          9  venture to say which ones might?

         10                 MR. SWEENEY: I'm afraid I really

         11  don't have any particular Agency in mind.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That is the

         13  question I didn't think you would answer. Again,

         14  knowing that so far, I'd like to again work with the

         15  Administration without targeting a certain Agency,

         16  again this is not a personal attack at all, it's a

         17  question of how do we improve the workplace for our

         18  City workers.  And so the bottom line is, again,

         19  subsequent to this Hearing, I'd like to work with

         20  the Administration and seeing what Agencies might

         21  need help and I'm sure your department has

         22  identified them as you have mentioned and hopefully

         23  this report will also maybe bring to light one of

         24  the other Agencies that may need some attention

         25  being paid to them.
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          2                 MR. SWEENEY: We'd be very happy to

          3  work with you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Any

          5  other questions from my Council?  At this point I

          6  want to thank you very much for your time and

          7  testimony today and I look forward to working with

          8  you in the future.

          9                 MR. SWEENEY: Thank you.  I appreciate

         10  the opportunity Councilman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  Our

         12  next panel from UFT is Chris Proctor and Sterling

         13  Robesson.  Please step forward. I want to thank you

         14  very much for being here today.

         15                 MR. PROCTOR: Thank you very much.

         16  Good Afternoon. My name is Chris Proctor and I'm

         17  here with Sterling Robesson and I'm one of the UFT

         18  Industrial Hygienists.  Sterling Robesson is

         19  Director of the School Safety Department.  We're

         20  testifying today on behalf of Randi Weingarten,

         21  President of the UFT (United Federation of Teachers)

         22  which represents approximately 110,000 employees in

         23  New York City's public schools.  We want to thank

         24  you for the opportunity to testify today on the

         25  issue of workplace safety, workplace injuries and
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          2  illnesses and their impact on our members.

          3                 Every day we see the toll workplace

          4  injuries and illnesses take on our members and the

          5  real tragedy is such injuries and illnesses, for the

          6  most part, can be prevented.  That's what we're

          7  really about and I know that that's what everyone

          8  here in this room is about.  Existing laws and

          9  regulations have not compelled our employer, the New

         10  York City Department of Education, to take all of

         11  the steps needed to make schools safe.

         12                 I think when one thinks of a typical

         13  school, we don't think of a high- risk work

         14  environment.  We really think, Oh, this is a home-

         15  away- from- home.  What we want to do is put a human

         16  face on some of the working conditions and what our

         17  members have to work with and it's also about

         18  protecting students.

         19                 One of the groups I want to talk

         20  about are Paraprofessionals.  They provide services

         21  to students by assisting teachers in a variety of

         22  classroom settings.  We have early childhood paras,

         23  but I want to talk in particular about the paras who

         24  work with special needs students.  This presents a

         25  far greater occupational safety and health risk.  We
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          2  have paras who work with "medically fragile"

          3  students in need of complex and sophisticated

          4  medical assistance.  You actually have students who

          5  arrive at schools in ambulances because they are so

          6  medically fragile.  These paras often have to

          7  provide diapering and toileting activities, they

          8  clean and feed students, and all of this may involve

          9  a lot of lifting and transferring.  While they are

         10  not medical professionals, paraprofessionals are

         11  often exposed to situations that involve urine,

         12  feces, blood and other potentially infectious body

         13  fluids.  I wanted to show a few pictures just right

         14  now because a lot of the work they do involves

         15  lifting and transferring and schools were never

         16  designed to accommodate these needs and we realize

         17  that, they were never built this way, but this is a

         18  typical situation and this is a Queens school and

         19  they have to diaper students.  They don't have a

         20  diapering table that was designed as a diapering

         21  table.  You can see there, it is just a piece of

         22  school furniture on which a gym mat has been placed.

         23    Certainly this is not a dignified situation for

         24  students and it puts staff also at risk.  You'll

         25  note also another hazard is the fact that the
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          2  garbage container for the diapers does not have a

          3  liner.  But imagine trying to lift a student who may

          4  weigh 100 pounds from a wheelchair with no

          5  assistance, sometimes just a lone para is there,

          6  although the policy is to always to have 2  but

          7  there could be a situation where there is only 1,

          8  the mat is unstable, there's no place to put the

          9  cleaning supplies and you can see a similar

         10  situation there where they're trying to make the

         11  best out of a bad situation.

         12                 We have here, again it's a piece of

         13  school furniture on which they've placed a mat and

         14  again, try to imagine lifting a student who weighs

         15  100 pounds.  They are going to do everything they

         16  can to protect the student but we have a lot of back

         17  problems noted among our paraprofessionals.

         18                 I wanted to actually tell you in the

         19  words of one of the paras, with whom we have been

         20  dealing with, she had a workplace injury where she

         21  injured her back a few years ago.  She was assigned

         22  to a student in a wheelchair.  The student weighed

         23  250 pounds.  The para, whose name is Ursula, had

         24  never had any training.  It was just "here is your

         25  student."  The student had no mobility except in one
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          2  arm and Ursula was told that she had to diaper and

          3  assist the student in toileting, which meant taking

          4  the student to the bathroom.  There was no

          5  handicapped stall in the girl's bathroom, so they

          6  had to use the boy's bathroom.  It required her to

          7  take a special seat, put it on the toilet and then

          8  transfer the student who weighed 250 pounds from the

          9  wheelchair to the toilet.  They had another para

         10  assist by holding the wheelchair steady, because the

         11  breaks didn't work.  When Ursula asked for training,

         12  she was told there was no one available except the

         13  mother gave 15 minutes of training.  So you can

         14  imagine what happened after three times of trying to

         15  toilet this student.  The student fell on Ursula and

         16  actually injured her back and pelvis so severely

         17  that she had to drop out of college, she was going

         18  to college at night, and she may never have

         19  children.  So that's the human face of what's

         20  involved in working in the schools.

         21                 I wanted to show you a few more

         22  changing -- that's another one, again it's just a

         23  mat on a table and these are all different schools.

         24  Here you have in a Brooklyn school an exam table

         25  that they were able to get from somewhere but the
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          2  lining is torn and now this presents a biological

          3  hazard because you can get body fluids on the lining

          4  and again, try to imagine, how do you lift the

          5  student to and from the table?  In a Manhattan

          6  school, we actually have a desk and a student desk

          7  pushed together.  One leg is in a urinal that was

          8  actually being used as a urinal.  Dirty gym mats and

          9  there was no place to put the diapers, so diapers,

         10  clean and dirty, were lying around the bathroom.  We

         11  didn't make these pictures up.  I'll get to

         12  secretaries in a moment.

         13                 I just wanted to show you every day

         14  what our staff members deal with and it's also a

         15  safety hazard for the students. It's certainly not

         16  dignified.  This is quite common.  Paras also

         17  routinely report to us that they consider assaults

         18  and accidents to be part of their job.  This culture

         19  of acceptance is part of the indoctrination of this

         20  segment of the workforce.  If they are smacked,

         21  kicked, slapped, stabbed or suffer severe back

         22  strain from lifting and transferring their limited

         23  mobility students, they're told this is part of

         24  their job.  In surveys we've conducted just in our

         25  training classes, approximately half the paras
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          2  report that they are assaulted and about a third

          3  report that they are repeatedly injured on the job.

          4  Yet less than half of 1% ever reported these

          5  incidents.  That's why we started our own Workers'

          6  Compensation Assistance Program to reach out to

          7  these members.

          8                 I wanted to, next, even though

          9  secretaries are not covered by Workers'

         10  Compensation, they're covered by injury in the line

         11  of duty, I wanted to show you some examples of their

         12  work stations because, again, this can be prevented.

         13    We know with the proper work station design their

         14  injuries can be prevented.  The troubling thing

         15  about workplace injuries resulting from repetitive

         16  strain such as carpel tunnel syndrome, they are not

         17  covered under injury in the line of duty.  We

         18  actually had an arbitration and lost that so these

         19  diseases or illnesses aren't even recognized as

         20  injuries in the line of duty.  But you can see the

         21  way she is sitting, everything is on one desk, the

         22  computer is bolted to the left, and she has her work

         23  area in front of her.

         24                 We know that the best position in

         25  which to work at a work station is when you're in
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          2  neutral position facing the computer.  When you work

          3  on a twist, you're actually going to set yourself up

          4  for the potential for neck, shoulder, back pain.

          5  But this is going to force her to work on a twist

          6  and she has to make excessive reaches.  Again, this

          7  could be prevented with proper work station design.

          8  The situation on the left has since been corrected

          9  but she had such a small work area, the only place

         10  in which to place her phone was on an open file

         11  cabinet and that's how she adapted.  Again, you have

         12  at a Queens' school, they're using a student desk

         13  for the keyboard and she's working on a twist, so,

         14  again, this is a prescription for neck, shoulder,

         15  back pain and also by working with her wrists bent

         16  in such a fashion, she could also have carpel tunnel

         17  syndrome.

         18                 This is what we'd like to see.

         19  Actually, where you have a desk for the computer,

         20  with an adjustable keyboard, adjustable chair, she

         21  can sit, she or he, the secretary, can sit, look at

         22  the computer and then turn and use the other

         23  surface, the other desk to do their other work.

         24  This is a much better design and what we say is

         25  ergonomically friendly.
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          2                 This is a retrofitted bathroom, where

          3  now we have a curtain that provides privacy and

          4  dignity for the student.  It's been designed so that

          5  you can readily move wheelchairs in and out. The

          6  last one, last two, we have an adjustable changing

          7  table that's foot operated.  This is what we need in

          8  all the schools where you must diaper students.

          9  You'll see, this is our District Representative for

         10  Special Ed, he's a big fellow, and he is in a

         11  mechanical lift that he felt very comfortable in and

         12  we would love to have equipment like this in our

         13  schools.  It would be safe for the students and safe

         14  for the staff, and therefore, safe for everybody.

         15                 The last thing, I wanted to speak

         16  just a bit about blood- born pathogens.  That's

         17  another serious concern of ours, another hazard.

         18  The Department of Ed remains out of compliance with

         19  this standard.  This standard does save lives.  I

         20  want to tell you what happened to one Para, in her

         21  words:

         22            I

         23  was infected with the Hepatitis C virus while

             working as a Paraprofessional in a New York City

         24  school.  In 1996 and 1997, I was working with 2

             wonderful students, both of whom self- mutilated.

         25  This was part of their special medical condition and

             I received no specialized training for this type of
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          2  work.  During this time period there were at least 2

             occasions when I was exposed to a student's blood

          3  while I attempted to distract them from hurting

             themselves.  I reported the incidents and was seen

          4  by the school nurse.  I was concerned about the

             exposures and sought medical treatment from my

          5  physician.  My doctor gave me a tetanus shot.  I

             just received a similar report 2 weeks ago from

          6  another Special Ed Teacher.  Some time later, I

             would say in 1999, I began having certain symptoms.

          7  As you can see, I am athletic and healthy, and have

             always taken good care of myself. So this was

          8  unusual.  I felt lethargic, feverish and had flu-

             like symptoms.  I was diagnosed with Hepatitis C in

          9  April 2003.  I did not have any of the risk factors

             related to Hepatitis C.  I was married for 20 years,

         10  never did drugs and never had a blood transfusion.

             The treatment for Hepatitis C was grueling.  I had

         11  to take the Hepatitis C cocktail as well as regular

             injections.  I missed about four or five months of

         12  work during this time, all of it unpaid. I completed

             my treatment in 2004 and it has taken me a long time

         13  to regain my strength and feel well. My immune

             system is compromised and I continue to take time

         14  off because of Hepatitis C related problems.

                            During the year I was under the

         15  treatment, my Union rep at the school was very

             supportive.  She went online to research my

         16  condition.  It was only then that we realized

             something very big.  We connected the dots and

         17  realized that I got sick from work.  Not only that

             but there was a long-standing OSHA law that

         18  regulated this occupational exposure.  This law is

             the Blood Born Pathogen Standard.  Imagine how I

         19  felt when I realized that this could have been

             prevented if my boss had obeyed the law.  An hour of

         20  training, provision of gloves for protection and

             some counseling once I was exposed so that I could

         21  get the proper treatment was all that I needed.

             That is all that my boss had to do and she did not

         22  do it.  To me, this is criminal, especially when

             there is a law protecting people like me who work in

         23  high risk jobs with the potential to

         24  exposure."

         25                 Our members daily continue to suffer

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  from exposure to blood and other potentially

          3  infectious body fluids and are not provided with the

          4  following: Mandated training for new employees,

          5  annual training, appropriate personal protective

          6  equipment, information about steps to take

          7  immediately when there is contact with blood,

          8  Hepatitis B vaccines for at- risk staff.  We remain

          9  deeply concerned that further delays in complying

         10  with this regulation will jeopardize the health and

         11  safety of our members. Again, this is preventable.

         12       We had been here last week on school safety, so

         13  you're familiar with that but I think Sterling

         14  Robesson just wanted to review what happened in one

         15  week.

         16                 MR. ROBESSON: Thank you.  When we

         17  think about, I know I testified last time with

         18  regards to school safety and workplace violence but

         19  when it comes to injuries in schools, it becomes

         20  very important.  Obviously, we know as teachers, the

         21  UFT and others have lobbied for the legislation

         22  which deals with safe schools against violence in

         23  education but when we think about workplace

         24  violence, just to recap certain things that happened

         25  just in the last week, involving injuries, where in
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          2  a Brooklyn school a student twisted a teacher's

          3  finger, bending it back, a student repeatedly hit

          4  the top and back of a teacher's head at a Staten

          5  Island school, a Bronx high school student hit a

          6  teacher with an aluminum bat when the teacher asked

          7  the student for that bat, a Manhattan school student

          8  threw a bottle at a teacher's chest.  When breaking

          9  up a fight in a Queens school, a teacher injured her

         10  right leg, arm, shoulder and back.  This is just a

         11  recap of a few as relates to injuries that happened

         12  in the workplace.  Just in terms of the testimony

         13  that Chris just gave, with regards to injury in the

         14  workplace for members who even put in claims, for

         15  example. Over the past several years, from 2004 up

         16  until the present, just taking one group in which

         17  Chris talked about, and that's the

         18  Paraprofessionals, who deal with that mentally

         19  fragile group. There was approximately almost 2,000

         20  incidents reported involving our members that dealt

         21  with special needs children.  And of that report,

         22  the 2,000 that were reported, 500 or so of those

         23  reports involved Paraprofessionals.  That's

         24  approximately 25% of the reported incidents.  But

         25  when we look at that 500, the number of them that
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          2  actually put in Workers' Compensation claims, that

          3  was about a little over 200, so we can see that

          4  there's a significant number as it relates to the

          5  relationship between the number of our members that

          6  report incidents in comparison to the number of

          7  individuals who are at high risk, for example that

          8  group that Chris talked about in terms of the

          9  Paraprofessionals and the number of them that,

         10  because of those injuries, are now putting in

         11  claims. So, although we have a lot of things on the

         12  books to sort of try to protect individuals, I still

         13  believe in light of what Chris brought out in her

         14  testimony that prevention is very important and when

         15  we think about the preventative measures that can be

         16  put in place, I think that in the long run, it's a

         17  win- win situation for all.  And then, just like the

         18  document in front of you, where we just talked about

         19  in the previous testimony, where now you have to

         20  have a tally as relates to the accountability for

         21  the number of individuals that have put in claims

         22  within the City, so, I think that just becomes very

         23  important for us to recognize and have these kinds

         24  of Hearings to deal with workplace injuries and to

         25  prevent workplace violence. So thank you very much
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          2  for listening to us with regards to this important

          3  issue.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Robesson,

          5  thank you very much and Ms. Proctor.  Couple of

          6  questions with regard to the testimony.  I'd

          7  appreciate -- first, let me again welcome our

          8  colleague who is a member of this Committee, Ms.

          9  Mark-Viverito. Council Member, thank you for being

         10  here.  Nice presentation, I appreciate that.  How

         11  many schools do you say have, you have a fix on how

         12  many schools have that kind of condition as far as

         13  those conditions that increase the probability of

         14  workplace illnesses or injuries?

         15                 MS. PROCTOR: No.  We haven't done a

         16  survey of all schools.  We are attempting to go out

         17  and actually do site inspections, so, for example,

         18  yesterday people from our department were at a

         19  school in the Bronx where, this is not a Special Ed

         20  school, but they have just received 2 students who

         21  need diapering and nobody at the school had any

         22  training in diapering, blood born pathogens and

         23  there's no place to diaper the students.  So guess

         24  what's happening with one?  The mother comes to the

         25  school to change her student.  Yes, we are
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          2  attempting to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I think that

          4  would be helpful. Obviously, identifying which

          5  schools have the problem and identifying how many

          6  schools exist that have this situation, we could

          7  then make the attempts to cure the situation.  Of

          8  the schools that you know of, and maybe the schools

          9  that were pictured, what precautions are being

         10  taken?  We know the problem now, you've shown it to

         11  us.  Has there been a reporting of that situation?

         12  Have there been capital requests made through the

         13  Department to get the changing tables or whatever

         14  equipment might be needed?

         15                 MS. PROCTOR: Yes, but that happens on

         16  a school- by school basis and it is very labor

         17  intensive.  But yes, once we identify -- for

         18  example, the school where the two tables were pushed

         19  together with the leg in the urinal, they got the

         20  changing table, but that took a long time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: All right, so

         22  that situation has been corrected, but again, that

         23  situation should not been so severe to begin with.

         24  So we are, again, in the process of going forward

         25  and hopefully correcting some of those, but again,
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          2  once we identify those that really have that kind of

          3  situation, I think that would be helpful.

          4                 Again, reporting it to the

          5  Department, making them aware of this situation and

          6  obviously taking steps to cure it.  I agree with

          7  you, Ms. Proctor, that these situations are

          8  preventable and when we look at workplace injuries

          9  and illnesses, that's hopeful this report will

         10  dictate to an extent, that some may be preventable

         11  and I appreciate that.

         12                 You had mentioned the issue of

         13  under-reporting, which I think is prevalent

         14  throughout many of these situations with regard to

         15  workplace illnesses or injuries. Why do you think,

         16  in your situation, are they under- reported?

         17                 MS. PROCTOR: I think for several

         18  reasons.  I think it's part of the culture, that

         19  this is part of your job, you're a Para, you're job

         20  is to lift, transfer students, diaper, or these are

         21  special needs students and you may get hit or

         22  punched or kicked and that's part of your job, 1.

         23  2. People also don't make the connection sometimes,

         24  in many cases, that they are becoming injured by

         25  their work tasks.  So, you may lift a child on
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          2  Friday afternoon, hurt your back but think, "You

          3  know what, I'm getting older.  This comes with the

          4  territory of aging.  I'll feel better on Saturday."

          5  You don't feel better, you wake up Monday and your

          6  back is really killing you, but you think, I can't

          7  report it now, even though you have 30 days under

          8  Workers' Comp to report an injury, DOE policy is 24

          9  hours.  It's a policy, not the law.  People get

         10  conflicting information, so, don't report, or it's

         11  too late, or they'll say I did something on the

         12  weekend.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  So let's

         14  talk in the converse.  What incentives do we give,

         15  or could we give, to encourage people to report?

         16                 MS. PROCTOR: Well that's where we've

         17  put together a Workers' Compensation Program where

         18  we actually went and trained all our Union Staff

         19  City- wide to make sure that they are able to

         20  explain to workers covered by Workers' Comp the

         21  importance of reporting and what their rights and

         22  benefits are and what they stand to lose by not

         23  reporting.  And then we train Paras in training

         24  classes throughout the year about why it is

         25  important to report and we also assist them and walk
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          2  them through the Workers' Compensation process.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I think that

          4  program is critical and crucial to the safety to

          5  your members.  One of the things that this Committee

          6  has stressed is educational programs and such that

          7  would help employees again, either report or again

          8  cure a situation.  I think, like I said, these

          9  programs are very helpful so I commend you for doing

         10  that.  In regards to the program and what you tell

         11  your employees, you brought up a situation with

         12  regards to a Para who had gotten a virus, Hepatitis

         13  C.  I'm not going to center on this particular

         14  situation because the question of whether the

         15  employee wearing the proper equipment, masks,

         16  gloves, or what have you, but is that something you

         17  touch upon in these programs that how can an

         18  employee themselves kind of reduce the probability

         19  of workplace illnesses or injuries by doing

         20  something themselves, and again, using the proper

         21  equipment or using the proper technique the right

         22  way.  Does your program touch upon that?

         23                 MS. PROCTOR: Oh yes.  It's a key

         24  component of training people in the components of

         25  the Blood Born Pathogen Standard.  As I said, the
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          2  Board has been in violation with the Blood Born

          3  Pathogen Standard since November 16, 2004 was the

          4  abatement date and they aren't in full compliance

          5  yet but if people don't know and we try to do

          6  outreach as much as possible and do training but our

          7  concern being put in situations, especially with

          8  medically fragile or special needs students, where

          9  there is a potentially greater risk of exposure to

         10  blood and body fluids and their primary concern is

         11  to protect the child so they may have contact with

         12  blood and body fluids and not know the right steps.

         13  Time is critical that they get the right emergency

         14  care in the event of an exposure.  For those who are

         15  at risk, the Board is required to offer them the

         16  Hepatitis B vaccine within 10 days of their

         17  assignment, that's not occurring, and so when you

         18  think that this Para has a disease that will be with

         19  her throughout her life and will impact her health

         20  throughout her life and that it could have been

         21  prevented, it really is a tragedy and a crime.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is.  And when

         23  we look at the overall issue of workplace injuries

         24  or workplace illnesses, we also understand and I

         25  think we must, that, it's going to take a concerted
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          2  effort with the employer, the employee, the elected

          3  officials working with the Administration, to make

          4  sure that techniques are done right, to make sure

          5  that equipment is used properly, and obviously the

          6  workplace environment is in good condition in order

          7  to, hopefully, prevent these illnesses and injuries

          8  which are preventable.  So I look forward to working

          9  with you.  Any questions from my colleagues?  I want

         10  to thank you for your time and testimony today and

         11  again we look forward to working with you again in

         12  early 2007 we will look at this situation

         13  legislatively and administratively so, again, we

         14  look forward to working with you.

         15                 MS. PROCTOR: Thank you for the

         16  opportunity to be here today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         18  much.  Our next panel, Joel Shufro from NYCOSH.

         19  Before Mr. Shufro goes, let me just mention for the

         20  record that DC37 has submitted testimony and it will

         21  be made part of the record.  Mr. Shufro, welcome

         22  back.

         23                 MR. SHUFRO: Thank you very much, I

         24  appreciate it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please give your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 MR. SHUFRO: I'm here on behalf of the

          4  New York Committee for Occupational Safety and

          5  Health and I'm also representing Ed Ott, Executive

          6  Director of the New York City Central Labor Council,

          7  who wanted to be here today but had other

          8  commitments and was unable to be present.  I'm not

          9  going to go through who we are since we went through

         10  that last time and also through the Central Labor

         11  Council and who they represent and I'm just going to

         12  talk extemporaneously from our testimony because

         13  it's too long to deliver in the limited amount of

         14  time that we have today.  We do want to commend the

         15  Council, and you, for holding this Hearing.  Too

         16  often, when we talk about workplace safety and

         17  health, particularly in legislative forums, it

         18  occurs only after there has been a tragedy.  The

         19  fact that you are holding this Hearing to develop

         20  proactive programs, to intervene, to reduce

         21  workplace safety and health, we think is a very

         22  commendable activity and we congratulate you for

         23  that.

         24                 We are meeting, of course, at a time

         25  when there are a series of occupational fatalities
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          2  that our City is confronting and dealing with.  I am

          3  a member of The Mayor's Task Force on Scaffolding,

          4  which is dealing with the -- what is an epidemic of

          5  fatalities that are occurring in our City from

          6  workers falling from scaffolds.  We -- that

          7  Committee, or that Task Force, should be making its

          8  recommendations to The Mayor sometime I believe at

          9  the end of this week and we are hopeful that The

         10  Mayor will accept some of the recommendations and

         11  move forward rapidly but, of these recommendations,

         12  a number of them are legislative in focus and will

         13  come to the City Council and we urge the City

         14  Council to begin to look at these issues.

         15                 The first and foremost is that we

         16  need to increase fines for contractors and building

         17  owners who do not comply with notification

         18  regulations and we also urge that there be criminal

         19  penalties for repeat violators.  As you well know,

         20  many of the people who have been killed have been

         21  immigrant workers falling from the scaffolds.  We

         22  think that this is part of a larger problem facing

         23  immigrant workers in this City that the Council

         24  needs to begin to address that problem.  We are in

         25  the midst of a dramatic building boom throughout the

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  City and what we have seen is a proliferation of the

          3  underground economy, people working off the books,

          4  outside the regulatory framework and a lot of this

          5  could be rectified by increased enforcement, by

          6  increased funding for inspectors to be in the field

          7  to contract with City -- or to maximize the "eyes on

          8  the street" if you will by cross- training members

          9  of the various City agencies who are out on the

         10  street on a regular basis, restaurant inspectors,

         11  for example, members of DEP who do right-to-know

         12  enforcement, all should be trained, cross trained,

         13  so that they can make the appropriate referrals to

         14  the appropriate Agencies.

         15                 We also are quite excited by the

         16  Mayor's initiative to provide a framework, to

         17  provide protections for day laborers and we await

         18  the recommendations of that Task Force which we also

         19  believe are, will be soon.  The Council will need to

         20  provide funding to expand inspections to shut down

         21  illegal jobs and to force unscrupulous employers to

         22  operate within the law.

         23                 Another area where I think the

         24  Council could be proactive is looking at the

         25  situation that arose from the World Trade Center.
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          2  Just last week, we had another report from the EPA

          3  announcing their plan to clean up apartments in

          4  Lower Manhattan, five years after the catastrophe

          5  occurred.  This plan is a fatally flawed plan and

          6  the City Council has been on record many times

          7  telling the EPA that the program that it has put

          8  forth is inadequate.  We strongly urge that the

          9  Council go on record again, telling the EPA that

         10  this is not sufficient to protect the health and

         11  safety of both workers and residents.

         12                 One glaring flaw in the plan is that

         13  it provides nothing whatsoever for the cleanup of

         14  workplaces in Lower Manhattan.  It totally

         15  eliminates and ignores them.  So from an

         16  occupational health perspective, it is irrelevant.

         17                 Secondly, in terms of the World Trade

         18  Center issues, I think the City could move forward

         19  to require buildings to enact evacuation plans.  My

         20  office is located several blocks South of here on

         21  John Street.  We were up on 20th Street for the last

         22  5 years, there has never been -- we get fire

         23  inspections regularly but there is not an evacuation

         24  plan in either of the buildings that we have been

         25  in, we have not been asked to evacuate our offices
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          2  and if we have learned anything whatsoever from the

          3  tragedy at the World Trade Center, having an

          4  evacuation plan is an incredibly important tool in

          5  cases of emergency and disasters.  It is, to me,

          6  incomprehensible that we are five years out and have

          7  no requirement for a plan or if there is a

          8  requirement that it is not being enforced.

          9            The other lesson of 9- 11 that I think the

         10  Council could weigh in on and that I think is

         11  particularly important is that a large number of

         12  workers who we don't consider to be emergency

         13  response workers participated in the recovery, clean

         14  up and rescue operations and so we had sanitation

         15  workers, we had EMT workers, we had construction

         16  workers, day laborers, tow truck operators, transit

         17  workers, construction workers, all of whom weren't

         18  trained to do the sort of work that they were called

         19  on to do and the consequence is that we have

         20  thousands and thousands, literally thousands of

         21  workers who are sick today because they worked,

         22  thinking that they were doing the right thing but,

         23  in fact, they did not know the hazards to which they

         24  were being exposed.  We believe that the City should

         25  require, should expand the definition of who is a
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          2  emergency responder and require that there be

          3  training for all workers who might participate in a,

          4  in such a response.  I think the Council has

          5  responsibility for all workers in the City, but they

          6  surely have responsibility for City workers who work

          7  in the public sector.

          8                 Moving on, it seems to me that the

          9  Council could provide a very important role in

         10  training the workforce through job training programs

         11  which it funds.  The City provides tens of thousands

         12  of dollars in contracts to Agencies to provide job

         13  training.  It is a no- brainer to me that, of course

         14  dealing with occupational safety and health so it's

         15  the way I think but, that there should be a

         16  requirement.  If you are training a worker for a

         17  job, that they be trained for the hazards of that

         18  job so that they know what to do when they get on

         19  the job.  Most worker injuries occur within the

         20  first 3 or 4 years of employment and we believe that

         21  it occurs because there's no appropriate training.

         22  People don't get injured later because they've had

         23  on- the- job training, they sort of know how to work

         24  safely after 3 or 4 years.  But it would go a long

         25  way to provide workers with training, I think it
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          2  would help employers maybe have a higher trained

          3  workforce and it would be a way in which they might

          4  be able to cut their Workers' Compensation costs.

          5                 In that regard, I think there are 2

          6  special populations that this Council needs to

          7  develop programs for.  There are youth and immigrant

          8  workers and also youth immigrant workers. Youth are

          9  injured on the job at a rate double the rest of the

         10  population.  80% of kids who go through high school

         11  work at some point during their high school career,

         12  none of them receive appropriate training and we

         13  think that the Council could develop programs,

         14  educational programs, which would allow for workers,

         15  young workers, to receive that initial training.

         16  Needless to say, immigrant youth are doubly at risk.

         17    They need to work, they are often, sometimes out

         18  of school, they need the jobs and will take any jobs

         19  that they can get and are often exploited and we

         20  need to develop programs to reach out to them.

         21                 There are a whole range of businesses

         22  which use toxic substances that we think should be

         23  regulated.  Just for starters, let's talk about nail

         24  salons proliferating throughout the City.  They use

         25  a wide range of toxic substances, some which are
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          2  carcinogens, others which are neurotoxins, others

          3  have adverse reproductive outcomes.  We think that

          4  the City Council could, in such industries, there

          5  are relatively inexpensive ways of protecting both

          6  the public and workers from the types of hazards to

          7  which the workers and the public are exposed.

          8                 I also serve on the, as the Council's

          9  representative, to the Hazardous Substance Right to

         10  Know Board and I've sat on that Committee for more

         11  years than I can count at this point in time.  I

         12  think that the Council would be well served to look

         13  at program and strengthen the sections of the law

         14  that deal with toxic use reduction.  Currently,

         15  those sections of the law are just words on a piece

         16  of paper.  What the law intends is for those

         17  facilities using extremely hazardous substances to

         18  look annually to determine whether there are safer

         19  substitutes that can be used.  We believe that the

         20  City should make a much stronger effort to

         21  strengthen those sections of the law to require that

         22  the employers actually do so.  The way the law

         23  currently reads is that an employer can every year

         24  walk into the corner and spend 15 seconds to think

         25  about whether there are substitutes available and
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          2  they've discharged their responsibility under the

          3  law.  This would be an important way of protecting

          4  our communities, protecting our workers and

          5  eliminating toxic terrorism in our City.  In that

          6  vein, New York should follow the lead of San

          7  Francisco and adopt the Precautionary Principle

          8  which requires that chemicals bought and purchased

          9  by the City be deemed safe before they are used

         10  rather than afterwards.

         11                 Let me just turn, before I conclude,

         12  to the issue of Workers' Compensation and to the

         13  report which you have in front of you and which you

         14  got in testimony.  We worked very hard with you and

         15  Councilman Gennaro to get that legislation and we

         16  think that it was an important step forward but,

         17  unfortunately, the City Law Department refused to

         18  meet with us, to meet with Unions that represent

         19  workers who utilize that law before that report was

         20  promulgated, before it was implemented.  We believe

         21  that the report is next to useless.  We think that

         22  is a terrible loss of time and energy.  We think

         23  this report could be designed and there are numerous

         24  reports produced by State Agencies and other

         25  institutions where by Agency and Job Title they can
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          2  figure out what are the injuries and the costs of

          3  those injuries and then they work systematically to

          4  reduce the injuries in those areas.  If you can't

          5  figure out by job title and by Agency where you are

          6  having the types of injuries, frequency of those

          7  injuries, severity of those injuries, you can't have

          8  a safety program.  And so from our perspective, the

          9  City, though it has an Office of Safety and Health,

         10  does not have a safety program that can be effective

         11  because it can't target the most dangerous

         12  occupations and as we've pointed out over and over

         13  again, we believe this is a win- win situation for

         14  the City.  There is no reason why we have to spend

         15  the amount of money for Workers' Compensation when

         16  we can reduce those injuries and it's not only the

         17  wage replacement costs that we're talking about.

         18  We're talking about a huge amount of indirect cost

         19  for every dollar you lose in wage replacement and

         20  medical, there are $2 to $2.50 in indirect costs.

         21  You have to recruit workers to fill the positions

         22  that workers can't fill, you have to train the

         23  workers, there's down time, all of those things.

         24  For an Administration that calls for productivity

         25  increases to pay for contracts, this is the way we
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          2  should be going.  In nursing homes, I can give you a

          3  very clear example.  In Western New York, the State

          4  of New York funded programs of zero lift, they saved

          5  hundreds of thousands of dollars, hundreds of

          6  thousands of dollars in Workers' Compensation costs

          7  in two or three years just by implementing safety

          8  programs.  So, we need to know where the accidents

          9  are, where the injuries are and we can reduce them.

         10  Cities have reduced their Workers' Compensation

         11  costs across the country.  Let me give you some

         12  examples.  In Berkeley, California where they

         13  implemented -- the Law Department John Sweeney

         14  testified that back injuries were the most frequent

         15  and most costly injury that we have in the City.  In

         16  Berkeley, they introduced garbage trucks which

         17  automatically load the garbage rather than have a

         18  person lift the garbage into a truck.  Their back

         19  injuries went down precipitously, saving the City

         20  hundreds of thousands of dollars.  It is not beyond

         21  the pale for us to think about implementing such

         22  programs.

         23                 So we would like to work with you to

         24  amend the law because we do not think the

         25  Administration here in -- has acted in good faith,
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          2  they have refused to meet with us, we have filed

          3  Freedom of Information requests for all that

          4  information that Mr. Sweeney talked about as being

          5  available in his office and the Administration has

          6  sat on those Freedom of Information requests, which

          7  were filed in August and they are violating the law

          8  by not responding.  So, we think that we need

          9  legislation to correct that situation.  Thank you

         10  very much.  The scope of this Hearing is huge and we

         11  only touched the tip of the iceberg.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is huge and

         13  again, Mr. Shufro, I do appreciate your time and

         14  testimony today and you bring out a number of points

         15  that I want to hit upon but the first one is the

         16  jurisdiction of this Council.  We want to all help

         17  the entire City workforce, both public and private

         18  entities and sectors, obviously our direct impact is

         19  on the public workforce and City workers but, of

         20  course, we are interested about the private sector

         21  as well and the building sites and, obviously, the

         22  construction sites we are concerned about as well.

         23                 Before I get to my points I want to

         24  welcome Council Member Gennaro.  Council Member

         25  Gennaro, thanks for being here today.  Before I get
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          2  to questions that Council Member may have, a number

          3  of points Mr. Shufro you brought up.  The 9-11

          4  situation, obviously, is a whole gamut, it's

          5  actually a separate entity, a separate category for

          6  this Committee as far as workplace illnesses and

          7  that situation.  We had had one prior Hearing

          8  earlier in the year regarding the ill effects of 9-

          9  11 in the City workforce.  We will be having a

         10  follow- up Hearing in early 2007 to see how the City

         11  is doing with that, so that is a major issue for

         12  this Committee.

         13                 You mentioned job training programs.

         14  I think they have to be highlighted.  UFT, and again

         15  I commend them for the work they have done with

         16  their programs, but, you know, hearing from Mr.

         17  Sweeney earlier from the Law Department each Agency

         18  being on their own, we like that idea of an

         19  oversight Agency to see if the preventable programs

         20  are going through each Agency and helping each

         21  individual employee of that Agency, City Agency, in

         22  these preventable programs.  You're opinion about an

         23  oversight Agency with each Agency doing it's own

         24  thing with regard to these preventable programs.

         25                 MR. SHUFRO: Well, the City did have
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          2  under Mayor Giuliani, a Risk Manager, who was let go

          3  for budgetary reasons, I guess.  That position has

          4  never been filled and I think that that is a vital

          5  position, if it was staffed properly, to help the

          6  City identify the types of occupational and

          7  environmental health problems that its workforce

          8  encounters.  If they had the appropriate data, it

          9  would be a way in which the City can oversee what

         10  each Agency is doing, set targets for reduction, and

         11  move in a disciplined way.  At this point, what you

         12  have is gunshot, a wide scattering of gunshot.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So we use an

         14  existing Agency such as either DCAS or Office of

         15  Labor Relations or whoever it may be, or utilize the

         16  risk management that might have been done under a

         17  prior Administration.  Under- reporting obviously is

         18  an issue, you had mentioned it earlier as well.  And

         19  we know the problems, you, of course, mentioned

         20  immigrant workers which, again, a large part of the

         21  under- reporting is due to their status.  But what

         22  incentives across the board do you propose to

         23  decrease the amount of under-reporting that we have?

         24                 MR. SHUFRO: The first thing that I

         25  would do is to strengthen the laws that prevent
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          2  employers from retaliating against workers.  Most,

          3  many workers are frightened to death to file a

          4  complaint because they are frightened they are going

          5  to lose their job.  In the Federal level and on the

          6  State level, the laws to protect workers in terms of

          7  getting their jobs back for filing a complaint are

          8  weak, to say the best.  I would strongly suggest

          9  that that would be the first thing.  We also might

         10  want to have some sort of independent Ombudsman

         11  office to encourage people to report issues but, I

         12  would strongly go with the former.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Questions from Council Member

         16  Gennaro?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.  I was hoping to be able to be here in

         19  time for Joel's testimony.

         20                 I was with the Mayor and the Speaker

         21  at an event regarding his big initiative and I had

         22  to be present for that, I was one of the principals

         23  in that.  But fortunately, I got here back in time

         24  for most of your testimony, Joel, and I know you

         25  have concerns about the report, as do we, and I want

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  to thank the Chairman for helping us to put this

          3  forward back in 2004 and although the report has

          4  been produced meets the letter of the law, and

          5  perhaps I, maybe you, should have been a little more

          6  careful about what we were asking for, but going to

          7  the letter of the law and that's all they're going

          8  to go.  The only thing that's going to make them go

          9  beyond that, it's just, they're not going to go past

         10  that, like at gunpoint, they're not going to go past

         11  that, and so we're -- it's just an unfortunate

         12  situation, Mr. Chairman, that this is, that we can't

         13  have cooperation, that we can't have collaboration,

         14  every i, every t, every this, every that, it's

         15  silly, it's nonsense, it's why can't we just

         16  cooperate with the administration and have them give

         17  us information which they should give it to us

         18  without having to do legislation to produce the

         19  report in the first place.  And so, it's a shame

         20  it's a shanda, okay, and so, certainly more to

         21  follow on that, Joel and Mr. Chairman, as well.  I

         22  would appreciate the opportunity to engage you in

         23  more colloquy on this important report.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         25  Council Member Gennaro.  Again, I thank you for your
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          2  legislation that started the ball rolling on this

          3  report.  With regards to the report, what obviously

          4  we have here, it's not light reading, this is not

          5  the pocket edition, this is actually the report.

          6  Like I mentioned earlier, I'm hopeful that this

          7  report becomes a useful tool in the future, not that

          8  is was just merely printed for the sake of the

          9  legislation that was passed but that it does become

         10  a useful tool for tracking trends and making the

         11  workplace a safer environment. But with regards to

         12  the report, Mr. Shufro, a question.  You had

         13  mentioned that you were not included in the

         14  conversations prior to the report, correct?

         15                 MR. SHUFRO: Correct.  We called,

         16  wrote the Department on several occasions, we had

         17  numerous members of the Council go to the Department

         18  and ask for a meeting, the Unions through their

         19  Collective Bargaining, through their Safety

         20  Committee tried to meet with the Department.  The

         21  Department was adamant about not meeting with

         22  anybody to talk about it.  Why?  I just have no

         23  idea.  I've had no prior contact with any of these

         24  people.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: As I mentioned
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          2  earlier, the first report sort of sets the

          3  benchmark.  This is the first report, obviously,

          4  subsequent reports, hopefully, would be more useful

          5  in the sense that we can compare it to this report.

          6  I have requested an Executive Summary, a better

          7  index, so hopefully our conversations will increase

          8  as the second report is due.  Did you have an

          9  opportunity to see the report at all?

         10                 MR. SHUFRO: Oh yes. I've looked at

         11  it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You have.  Have

         13  you digested the numbers in any way?

         14                 MR. SHUFRO: We have begun to look at

         15   -- I would say that it's not totally useless, there

         16  are some numbers that you will be able to generate

         17  from it.  But in terms of developing a targeting

         18  mechanism, which is what the whole point was, and to

         19  lay the basis for the City developing a safety

         20  program, that you can't do with this report.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.  And I

         22  tend to agree with you, this report is going to

         23  require work with regards to telling the story that

         24  it's supposed to tell with regards to workplace

         25  illnesses or injuries.
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          2                 MR. SHUFRO: Many Cities, because we

          3  now have looked at other Cities in New York, many

          4  cities produce these sorts of reports.  They have to

          5  because they want to reduce their Workers' Comp

          6  costs.  Everybody's in a budget crisis, everybody's

          7  looking for money.  This is one way they go about

          8  it, and in some cases many of the cities have

          9  outside administrators who come in and have a

         10  pecuniary, profit driven, motive for dropping the

         11  numbers.  Even though we're self- insured, we have

         12  an even greater reason to drop the numbers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You had

         14  mentioned other cities. Can you mention any by name?

         15                 MR. SHUFRO: Well, we talked to

         16  Syracuse, for example.  They have a similar report.

         17  The COSH Group up where we were up in Syracuse,

         18  that's comparable to our organization contacted

         19  about 4 or 5 cities in their area and found that all

         20  of them did.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         22                 MR. SHUFRO: Buffalo also does.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  I'd like

         24  to know what cities in particular and we can have

         25  this conversation but the reason being I don't like
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          2  to compare New York City to any other city, I think

          3  we are quite unique.

          4                 MR. SHUFRO: Oh, we are unique.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Needless to say,

          6  we are unique. The bottom line is I like to see what

          7  other cities do have a similar report just as a way

          8  of slight comparison.  You mentioned or I saw in

          9  your testimony, you had mentioned San Francisco as

         10  being kind of ahead of the curve in being

         11  preventive.  I don't know, was that your reference

         12  to California and the garbage trucks or did San

         13  Francisco do something different?

         14                 MR. SHUFRO: San Francisco has adopted

         15  the Precautionary Principle.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Can you expand

         17  on that a little bit please?

         18                 MR. SHUFRO: Yes.  The Precautionary

         19  Principle says that rather than wait for bodies to

         20  pile up as a result of exposure to a toxic

         21  substance, you don't allow the use of substances

         22  until you know that it's safe.  This seems to me to

         23  be a very sound, preventive approach and they have

         24  in their purchasing policy now, they look at all the

         25  chemicals that the City is going to purchase and
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          2  they eliminate those that they know are going to

          3  cause health problems and they look for less toxic

          4  substances.  And this is a principle which is being

          5  used throughout the World.  Europe is developing a

          6  program called REACH, which I have to say, our

          7  government is trying to undermine, regardless, it is

          8  a similar sort of preventive program to reduce the

          9  exposure of the public to toxic substances and I

         10  think -- it would be wonderful for New York to be in

         11  this vanguard of moving in that direction.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         13  Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes, I just

         15  wanted to say, Joel, that why we don't have the full

         16  range of all products covered -- we have passed laws

         17  in the Council regarding green cleaning products --

         18                 MR. SHUFRO: That's a wonderful first

         19  step.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And so that

         21  was as a big result a lot of exposure is due to

         22  these products, particularly in schools and kids are

         23  around them and pesticides, so in terms of big areas

         24  to focus on, we've already taken care of cleaning

         25  products and are taking care of pesticides so we're
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          2  on our way.

          3                 MR. SHUFRO: Good.  I, you are to be

          4  congratulated for those steps.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you from

          6  our Environmental Chair.  Thank you very much.  Mr.

          7  Shufro, I again appreciate your time and testimony

          8  today.  I found your testimony quite enlightening in

          9  the sense that we need to have a follow- up

         10  conversation with regards to the report and the

         11  future of tracking at least workplace illnesses and

         12  injuries.  So again, I look forward to working with

         13  you in early 2007.

         14                 MR. SHUFRO: Thank you very much.  I

         15  appreciate you holding this Hearing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         17  much for your time and testimony.  We have four more

         18  witnesses so we're going to do 2 panels of 2.  The

         19  first panel of 2 is James Huntley from NYPD, are you

         20  bringing up Patrick as well?  Yes, bring him up.

         21  Patrick Plummer as well, so it will be a panel of 3.

         22    And James Conway, Operating Engineers Local 14.

         23  Gentlemen, thank you very much, please state your

         24  name, your affiliation and your testimony, please.

         25                 MR. HUNTLEY: Good Afternoon, my names
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          2  is James Huntley.  I'm the President of Traffic and

          3  Sanitation Enforcement Agent and on behalf of the

          4  2,400 members and 40 retirees of Local 1182; they

          5  are the everyday heroes that make New York City

          6  move. I want to thank Chairman Addabbo and the

          7  members of the New York City Council for this

          8  opportunity to appear before you today. Traffic and

          9  Sanitation Enforcement Agent is New York City's

         10  largest revenue public enforcement agency and Union

         11  throughout the 5 boroughs of New York City.  I came

         12  here today to talk to the City Council and the

         13  Members here in regards to our Agents, Traffic

         14  Enforcement and Sanitation Enforcement Agents that

         15  have a serious job that people think is a joke.  And

         16  why I say that is because when we're out in the

         17  street dealing with the public every day, issuing

         18  summons due to the laws of traffic vehicle laws,

         19  public laws that we put in place, the City Council

         20  and the Mayor, the people take advantage of us by

         21  spitting on us, beating us down, assaulting us every

         22  day.  As a matter of fact, police officers, fire

         23  department, firemen, Assemblymen, I could go on and

         24  on telling you who assault us every day because we

         25  issue them a summons for their violation.  They put
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          2  themselves in a violation in the streets of New

          3  York.  We took this job as a professional to issue

          4  summonses for the City of New York and still we are

          5  being used as a rag tag in the City of New York.  We

          6  would like to say we would like it to stop.  Due to

          7  the harassments, it is causing injuries to our

          8  members every day.  Our members are getting run

          9  over, our members are being assaulted, our members

         10  are being slapped by the buses, slapped by vehicles,

         11  swinging doors, distress of people hollering and

         12  calling all kinds of profanity and names, our

         13  members are in such despair that it's sickening.

         14  And we are supposed to be a part of NYPD, Department

         15  of, what, the Police Department and Sanitation, and

         16  still we'll be treated like some kind of outsiders.

         17  Why is this?  We need some assistance from the City

         18  Council.  We're tired of being punching bags for the

         19  City of New York.  We're tired that every time we go

         20  for compensation for a Workers' Compensation

         21  situation or injury, we have to give up our annual

         22  leave time, eight days in advance, in order to

         23  receive our Workers' Compensation number or go in

         24  front of a City Board to register as a Workmen's'

         25  Compensation case.  That's ridiculous.  So they are
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          2  taking our time, taking it, then we have to appear

          3  in front of a State Board to receive our annual

          4  leave days back.  We don't have line of duties,

          5  assaulted.  It's ridiculous.

          6                 I just want to read something to you,

          7  and would like to pass this out to you so you can

          8  read along, if you don't mind.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just read it,

         10  please.

         11                 MR. HUNTLEY: It states that Mr.

         12  Terrell Lee is a Traffic Enforcement Agent of ours.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 "On Monday, September 21, 2005, the

         15  life of 27-year-old New York City Traffic

         16  Enforcement Officer Terrell Lee was impacted in an

         17  unpredictable way.

         18                 While directing traffic on this

         19  seemingly ordinary day on the corner of 60th Street

         20  and York Avenue, on the East Side of Manhattan, at

         21  5:15 pm, TEA II Officer Terrell Lee's life was

         22  altered forever.  It was evening time in New York

         23  City and the traffic started to build up. While on

         24  duty, a Mazda cut off an SUV.  This caused the SUV

         25  to leap directly towards Mr. Lee, hitting him head
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          2  on, knocking him immediately to the ground.

          3  Although it was only ten minutes before the

          4  ambulance arrived and delivered him to Cornell

          5  Medical Center, which is just eight blocks away from

          6  the accident, Terrell recalls his life flashing

          7  before him.  He imagined his final outcome would

          8  surely be death.

          9                 Following a ten-hour operation, he

         10  continued to waiver between life and death in a coma

         11  for 40 days..."

         12                 MR. HUNTLEY: Just like Jesus, right?

         13  40 days Jesus was out in the desert, right?  But he

         14  was in a coma for 40 days, asking for prayers,

         15  asking for deliverance.

         16                  "... He was both surprised, as well

         17  as we, and relieved when he awoke in the hospital in

         18  a semi-conscious state realizing that his left leg

         19  had to be amputated.

         20                 He worked hard during his physical

         21  therapy sessions and continually exceeded

         22  expectations. It was his drive and determination

         23  that proved medical science wrong when he walked out

         24  of the Cornell Medical Center at 10:00 am on March

         25  22, 2006.  Although Terrell Lee has been released
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          2  from the hospital and is beginning to live again, we

          3  feel it is our duty to support one of our own and to

          4  let him know that he is not forgotten."

          5                 Now, the reason that I read that to

          6  you is because this is the man here, this picture

          7  that I will show you, that during that leaping

          8  accident with the Mazda and the SUV, this cost this

          9  young man, 27-year-old -- 27-year-old to lose his

         10  right leg while he was unconscious, in a coma.  He

         11  didn't even know that his leg was amputated until he

         12  woke up.  So, this is serious to us, this is no play

         13  games and we need the City to start taking this

         14  serious about Traffic Enforcement Agents as well as

         15  Sanitation Enforcement Agents.  You know, just

         16  because we -- we're the highest, or least the fourth

         17  revenue making in the City of New York, bringing in

         18  a half a billion dollars in New York City.  That is

         19  nothing to laugh at.  We make money for New York

         20  City and you know that.  So it's about time you help

         21  us get some establishment for us.  We have a

         22  compensation, we have a pension that most of our

         23  members have to be the age of 62 or vested 5 years

         24  to go out with full retirement.  They can't make it

         25  at 62 years of age.  I'm constantly wearing black
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          2  going to funerals for our members because they're

          3  dying at an alarming rate when they retire and doing

          4  3 years on the streets and 3 years at home, they're

          5  dead.  We need a pension bill 25/55 straight out,

          6  just like EMS, just like close to NYPD, just like

          7  other enforcement agencies that have it.  School

          8  safety and the rest of the people.  We want the same

          9  priority as everybody else.  We're tired of being

         10  second fiddle and we bring the most, the large

         11  revenue to help this City run.  We give a lot to

         12  this City and yet we get little back given to us.

         13  We're not asking for much.  We're just asking for

         14  some help and assistance.

         15                 Now, we would like to suggest to you,

         16  right, a better way that could help our Workers'

         17  Compensation injuries, if you don't mind.  Please,

         18  thank you.  We would like to make the compensation

         19  workers, we would like to make compensation workers,

         20  get more compensation workers for the overloading

         21  cases that they have been having.  It seems that

         22  when our members go on Workmen's Comp, they can't be

         23  seen right away by Compensation personnel because

         24  they have lack of workers.  What's going on?  Just

         25  get animated machines trying to respond to an injury
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          2  and try to diagnose and priagnose (sic) them?  What

          3  is going on with New York City? So we need more

          4  workers, come on, we got the money, let's push it

          5  out there.

          6                 Better training to workplace safety.

          7  We need better training.  Just like one of my

          8  colleagues was speaking up here earlier.  We need to

          9  have that at orientation.  At the rookie start so

         10  that they understand that when they go out in that

         11  street there's some hazards going on they need to

         12  protect themselves. This is how you protect

         13  yourself.  This is how you keep yourself safe from

         14  the elements and the situations out there in the

         15  streets. If they're not getting this type of

         16  understanding when they go out in the field, guess

         17  what happens?  We're back here at the table talking

         18  again about Workmen's Compensation.

         19                 We need better public awareness.

         20  Let's use our public system to aware the people, the

         21  tourists and everyone who comes through New York

         22  City, who lives in New York City that Traffic

         23  Enforcement Agents, right, has a right to issue a

         24  summons. If you interfere with that, you're

         25  subjected to being arrested. You subjected to that
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          2  because you shouldn't put your hands on a law

          3  enforcement personnel that enforcing the laws of the

          4  City of New York.  I don't see that.  I don't see no

          5  other Agency that has enforcement groups that don't

          6  have enforcement powers to make an arrest but us.

          7  I'm talking about Level 1s and 2s.  We're not

          8  Special Patrolmen, we're not Peace Officers, but you

          9  give it to everyone else, except us.  Why is that?

         10  Why we get beat down so much by the City of New York

         11  and no one says, "Let's get no protection, let's get

         12  them a felony bill like the bus operators have and

         13  then maybe, maybe, people will stop putting their

         14  hands on them and they can go home to their spouse,

         15  they can go home to their children, not being broken

         16  up with a bloody nose.  See, we can take everything

         17  else, the antics, the slangin [sic], the calling and

         18  everything else, because we've been called

         19  everything by the name of God except that.  But,

         20  it's okay, we can deal with that.  We're talking

         21  about the real physical aspects of putting your

         22  hands on one of our people, our members, and think

         23  you're going to get away with it.  Because once you

         24  get away with it, guess what happens?  You go

         25  somewhere else, and you go to your neighbors and you
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          2  say, "Listen, that Traffic Agent, put your hands on

          3  him.  Nothin's gonna happen to you. [sic]  Hit 'em,

          4  take their boat, break their wrist, it's okay.  It's

          5  a joke. [sic]"  We're tired of being a joke.

          6                 The other things: A better

          7  Enforcement Compensation Claims.  Often times, we

          8  have a 20% difference in the diagnose and priagnose

          9  in our body attributes because most of my workers,

         10  we use our foots [sic], our legs, our arms and so

         11  forth, and so if that is deterrent or hurt or a

         12  cause of a major problem it's hard for us to return

         13  back to work.  But we can return back on light duty,

         14  but the City of New York tells our Agents that we

         15  don't have light duty, so therefore, they can't

         16  return back to work, not unless it's called full-

         17  time duty.  We need something in place, something

         18  for light enforcement until they can be better by

         19  the doctor's standards to come back to full- time

         20  duty.

         21                 We talk about a better pension plan.

         22  The other thing is the physical taxing on the

         23  streets.  You know that.  Every time we on the

         24  street, it's physically taxing, the stress and so

         25  forth, is building up and we don't really see that
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          2  until afterwards when we try to retire.  That's when

          3  everything just falls apart. Your leg comes off,

          4  your toes get larger, you stop throwing those green

          5  sperms.  You know, everything just happens because

          6  of the physical taxing on the streets.  You don't

          7  see it directing traffic, walking the street,

          8  dealing with these peoples, people putting their

          9  hands on you.  It's just ridiculous.  We need help.

         10                 I thank you for listening to me.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRMAN ADDABBO: Thank you very much

         13  for your testimony.  We're going to hear testimony

         14  from everyone, then we'll do questions, so, anyone

         15  else have testimony?  You, sir?

         16                 JAMES P. CONWAY: Honored Councilmen,

         17  thank you for holding this Hearing.  My name is

         18  James Conway.  I'm with the Operating Engineers

         19  Local 14.  My Union represents about 1,600 crane

         20  operators here in the City of New York.  Our crane

         21  operators are licensed by the Department of

         22  Buildings, the license is called a hoisting machine

         23  operators license.  I'd like to give you some good

         24  news today.  This year, 2006, my apprenticeship

         25  program graduated 4 females, 2 African- Americans
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          2  and 2 Hispanics from our apprenticeship program.

          3  They came down to the City of New York, DCAS and the

          4  Department of Buildings, and they received their

          5  Crane Operators License.  So I have some good news.

          6  I like to share a success story with you on the side

          7  of safety.  You will probably never see these 4

          8  ladies because they will probably spend their

          9  careers operating cranes here in New York City

         10  safely.  And the reason why is that they had to go

         11  to an apprenticeship program. They came from social

         12  programs that the City Council works hard trying to

         13  create diversity here in the New York City

         14  construction industry.  These ladies were required

         15  to complete a 3 year apprenticeship program and the

         16  reason why apprenticeship programs give us safe

         17  crane operators is that they receive on- the- job

         18  training, where they get mentoring from myself, they

         19  also come on Saturdays and receive seven hours of

         20  instruction in a controlled environment on a crane,

         21  and then they attend related instruction to learn

         22  about the trade that they cannot learn on the job

         23  site.  So a combination of related instructions,

         24  operating a crane in a controlled environment and

         25  on- the- job training is giving us safe crane
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          2  operators.

          3                 So what happened was a social program

          4  of trying to bring in minorities and requiring

          5  minorities to take crane operator apprenticeship

          6  programs is now giving us safer crane operators. So,

          7  I think we need to look into this apprenticeship

          8  program, training programs, that will give us safer

          9  crane operators.  The City Council has already seen

         10  administrative codes on the licensing of crane

         11  operators.  I believe if there are any amendments to

         12  it, it could hurt the safe crane operation that we

         13  have.  We also need to hear from minority crane

         14  operators as to why the apprenticeship program is

         15  working, why is it giving us safe crane operators,

         16  and maybe we could also look and find out that most

         17  of the minorities, African- American, Hispanics and

         18  females that are operating cranes here in New York

         19  City have never been involved in a crane operators

         20  accident, have never been found of a violation of

         21  operating a crane against City codes.  You need to

         22  look at this apprenticeship program, why it works,

         23  why apprenticeship training works.  Also, why is the

         24  crane operators license here in New York City

         25  working, it's giving us safe crane operators.  You
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          2  will be seeing more of this next year, of trying to

          3  re- write the building codes of crane licensing and

          4  I'd like to include this group into it for next

          5  year. Thank you, Councilmen.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          7  much, Mr. Conway.  And again, it is very promising

          8  to hear that programs are out there that are helpful

          9  in minimizing accidents and, obviously, decreasing

         10  the amount of possible injuries.  I only hope, Mr.

         11  Huntley, we can say the same for your memberships

         12  somewhere down the line.  Again, some of my

         13  questions will be for both of you, some will be

         14  directed and Mr. Huntley, this will be directed to

         15  you.  So, I'm guessing what you're saying is the

         16  abuse -- you can use that mike -- the abuse that

         17  you're membership is getting is not part of the job,

         18  correct, it shouldn't be taken as part of the job,

         19  correct?

         20                 MR. HUNTLEY: Please say that one more

         21  time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The abuses that

         23  your memberships are getting, the kicking, the

         24  spitting, the abuse, that's not part of your job, is

         25  it?
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          2                 MR. HUNTLEY: No, it's not.

          3  Absolutely not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I thank you for

          5  not only identifying the problem but also the

          6  suggestions and we will take up these suggestions

          7  that you had proposed.  A lot of the information

          8  that we had gotten that last Hearing on December 4th

          9  with regard to workplace violence is some of the

         10  issues you did mention were for that Hearing as

         11  well.  That legislation we will work on in early

         12  2007, so we look forward to some legislation that

         13  helps workers throughout the City as far as creating

         14  a better and safer workplace.  Mr. Huntley, how many

         15  members do you represent, roughly?

         16                 MR. HUNTLEY: Roughly 2,400.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you remember

         18  how many injuries or fatalities you had last year at

         19  all?  Can you give a roundabout number?

         20                 MR. HUNTLEY: We had no fatalities but

         21  as far as injuries are concerned we had a lot, I

         22  would say close to 100. Those are injuries such as,

         23  like I was saying before, slapped with a window.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A question for

         25  both of you.  If an injury should occur on the
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          2  worksite, do you have a process for reporting these

          3  injuries, yes or no?

          4                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Yes, sir.

          5                 MR. CONWAY: Yes, we have an OSHA 300

          6  form.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The OSHA is

          8  obviously very helpful for crane operation and

          9  construction sites.  Your suggestions or opinions

         10  about the process, does the process need to be

         11  revamped, is it working, is it not working?  Mr.

         12  Huntley first.

         13                 MR. HUNTLEY: I believe the process

         14  here is not working.  It should be revamped with

         15  your leadership and the rest of the co- chairs.

         16                 MR. CONWAY: I also agree, we need to

         17  be revamped.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's going to

         19  be a conversation then that we're going to have to

         20  have, obviously, after this Hearing in the months to

         21  come, because it's that process that's critical for

         22  not only tracking these illnesses and injuries that

         23  could be prevented in the future but also for those

         24  who are injured, like Mr. Lee, and I hope Mr. Lee is

         25  doing well, but obviously that him and his family
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          2  are protected even before the accident if it's

          3  preventable or after the injury.  These are the

          4  processes and procedures that we're going to have to

          5  work on for the sake of our City workforce.  Any

          6  questions from Council Member Gennaro?  I want to

          7  thank both of you for being here and again, I look

          8  forward to continuing the conversation regarding

          9  this issue for your memberships.

         10                 MR. HUNTLEY:  Thank you, sir.  Thank

         11  you for having us.

         12                 MR. CONWAY: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our last panel

         14  for today is Andrew Sydor from TWU Local 225, Andrew

         15  step forward, and Rajani Aahikani, Rajani I hope I

         16  got close this time, from ROC, the Restaurant

         17  Opportunity Workers.  Thank you very much for being

         18  here.  State your name and give your testimony,

         19  please.

         20                 MR. SYDOR: My name is Andy Sydor and

         21  I represent the Tour Guides, Ticket Sellers and some

         22  of the drivers at Grey Line New York Site Seeing on

         23  behalf of the Transport Workers Union Local 225.

         24  I'm also an active guide, doing 10- 15 tours per

         25  week.  We're the people with the double decker tour
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          2  buses, some of which are passing by this building as

          3  we speak.  We also work for a company that

          4  stubbornly refuses to acknowledge that the weather

          5  creates special environmental difficulties for their

          6  double decker service. Simply put, the company has

          7  only 1 written rule regarding inclement weather: If

          8  the temperature gets lower than 20 degrees, they

          9  don't let anyone on the top of the bus.  That's it.

         10  Nothing for heavy rain, nothing for snow, nothing

         11  for lightning.  The company refuses to set policy

         12  for these circumstances.  It's a relatively new

         13  problem.  Before 2001, Grey Line did not routinely

         14  run open topped double deckers in the Winter.  Since

         15  then, they tried for a few years to experiment with

         16  canopies or bubble tops, but those solutions failed.

         17    Since then, the company has acted like the weather

         18  is no problem at all.  We only got the 20 degree

         19  rule in our last contract negotiation.  To give you

         20  an idea of how bad this can be, on September 6, 2004

         21  New York was hit by a blizzard so severe that the

         22  MTA had to cancel their bus service by 11:00 that

         23  morning.  Grey Line kept running their buses, with

         24  tops open, until past 3:00 pm that day.  One of our

         25  members was fired that day for refusing to go on
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          2  top.  The buses had ice and snow drifts on the top,

          3  but still customers were told that it was okay to

          4  ride up there.  We've written the Mayor about this

          5  and gotten no response at all.  We've contacted the

          6  Department of Consumer Affairs, which has regulatory

          7  authority over the tour buses but they have yet to

          8  act.  Arguing that if the consumer wants to sit out

          9  in the open in lousy weather they can do so.  No,

         10  they can't smoke in a bar, but they can do this.

         11  This is nonsense.  That we allow people up there at

         12  all creates the false impression that the experience

         13  must be acceptable, else, why would it be allowed?

         14  But when the customer starts to realize that the

         15  experience sucks, there's no more room on the bottom

         16  and they're stuck there and the tour guide is stuck

         17  with them.  That's right, for safety reasons the

         18  tour guide must be on top if so much as 1 tourist

         19  wants to be there and our tours can take up to 4.5

         20  hours.  A former head of the DCA once said to me in

         21  reference to this issue, "Isn't it the Union's job

         22  to fix this?"  Sadly, it is not.  According to labor

         23  law, a Union cannot tell a company how to run it's

         24  business.  We hit this head on last year when we

         25  went into contract arbitration over the issue of
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          2  weather rules.  While we got the 1 20 degree rule

          3  written down, we could get nothing else, even though

          4  the arbitrator himself thought the company's lack of

          5  rules was "crazy."  The negotiation process has

          6  failed.  But the City can tell them how to run their

          7  business and they need to do so.  The City needs to

          8  assume the responsibility, but right now the City

          9  seems to be waiting for someone to die before they

         10  spring into any action. Eventually this will happen,

         11  but mark my words, and I'm a person who literally

         12  tells stories for a living, when a double decker one

         13  day rolls into Times Square with a dead baby on it,

         14  the story will NOT be that the Union failed to try

         15  to stop this, the story will NOT be that the company

         16  was negligent, the story will be that this City was

         17  warned of these circumstances and did nothing.  The

         18  only way to preempt this story is for the City to

         19  assume its proper responsibility now.

         20                 MS. AAHIKANI: Council Member Addabbo,

         21  thank you so much for having me today and giving me

         22  this opportunity.  My name is Rajani Aahikani, I'm

         23  the Policy Organizer and a restaurant worker for the

         24  Restaurant Opportunity Center of New York (ROC NY).

         25  Although I had some written testimony, most of it
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          2  was background so I'm just kind of going to go off a

          3  little bit more about the issue at hand today which

          4  is workplace injuries.  Just again, for a tiny bit

          5  of background, we're a membership- based

          6  organization of 1,600 restaurant workers from across

          7  the City.  We're the first and the only to really

          8  study the working conditions in New York City in

          9  over 20 years.  We have published reports on this

         10  issue, including Behind the Kitchen Door and Dining

         11  Out, Dining Healthy.  What we know from these

         12  reports is that restaurant workers are really in

         13  serious danger.  We face cuts, burns, slips and

         14  falls, exposure to toxic chemicals, in terms of

         15  cleaning, and restaurant workers are working under

         16  highly stressful conditions.  They suffer the

         17  problems of repetitive motion but we also suffer

         18  from the need for acute medical care.  And with 9

         19  out of 10 restaurant owners not providing health

         20  insurance, 9 out of 10 restaurant owners not

         21  providing paid sick days, we're forced to use

         22  emergency rooms to address our injuries.  After fire

         23  fighters and police officers, restaurant workers are

         24  the third group in the emergency rooms of New York

         25  City.  So we are often times told, in terms of
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          2  Workers' Compensation, I do have to talk about it a

          3  bit, because we are often times told not to use the

          4  Workers' Comp system.

          5                 First, many restaurant owners do not

          6  even bother to have the insurance and we actually

          7  applaud the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          8  who are thinking creatively about how to get

          9  restaurant owners to comply with the Workers' Comp

         10  laws.  But for many restaurant owners who actually

         11  do have the insurance, the are instructing their

         12  workers to not tell hospital employees in emergency

         13  rooms that they were injured on the job.

         14                 In fact, at Cafe Fiorello's, where 80

         15  workers are standing together to win with the other

         16  hundreds of workers at the Firemen Hospitality

         17  Group, this huge campaign that we have, and one

         18  worker was actually very badly cut cutting

         19  vegetables and the manager drove him to the hospital

         20  and he was told repeatedly, "Do not tell the

         21  hospital workers, do not tell them you were on the

         22  job."  And this is a common story.  I do have to

         23  very briefly say I want to thank Council Member

         24  Viverito for standing with us on Friday evening, one

         25  of the coldest evenings of the year so far, where
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          2  she stood in front of restaurants with us in

          3  solidarity with the workers asking for change.

          4                 I'd also like to tell you briefly

          5  about some of the proactive measures that we're

          6  taking to protect ourselves.  With our friends at

          7  NYCOSH and the National Institute of Occupational

          8  Safety and Health, we're studying the industry once

          9  again.  We're conducting about 500 surveys in order

         10  to better understand solutions to the common

         11  injuries we often have.

         12                 We're also training our members to

         13  train other restaurant workers so that workers

         14  ourselves can identify possible hazards on the job.

         15  We believe that it is not just in the nature of our

         16  job to be injured, but that there are real ways for

         17  restaurant owners and the City to proactively

         18  safeguard restaurant workers.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Aahikani,

         20  thank you very much.  I want to thank you for the

         21  efforts that you do with regards to our City's

         22  restaurant workers, so thank you very much.

         23                 Mr. Sydor?  Very interesting

         24  regarding our tour guides throughout the City.  This

         25  Committee actually held a Hearing when there was a
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          2  threat of automating the job and we had a Hearing in

          3  support of the workers and I'm glad to see that

          4  issue is no longer an issue.

          5                 MR. SYDOR: No, that bill seemed to

          6  evaporate somewhere, so --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm glad to hear

          8  that

          9                 MR. SYDOR: We hope to revive that

         10  bill this year, so --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A question for

         12  both of you but I think I know what Mr. Sydor's

         13  answer is.  The City, when you reached out to the

         14  City because both of you are not City workers, so to

         15  speak, so you reached out to the City and you might

         16  have reached out to Consumer Affairs, no response at

         17  all, Andy, I heard in your testimony Consumer

         18  Affairs, the Mayor's Administration, no response at

         19  all?

         20                 MR. SYDOR: No response from the Mayor

         21  whatsoever, we've had some meetings with Consumer

         22  Affairs and actually, just recently had another

         23  meeting with them on another issue through the

         24  Guides Association, of which I'm also a member.

         25  That was specifically just on lack of enforcement,
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          2  not checking licenses was an ongoing problem but

          3  this issue came up because they saw I was there, and

          4  they've only taken some cursory glances at the buses

          5  on cold days, they've never gone on the buses to see

          6  what the experience is actually like and they're

          7  still using that laissez faire argument.

          8                 Basically, I'm just going to have to,

          9  like, really try to film or something, like,

         10  somebody whose really stuck on the bus, which

         11  happens a lot.  I mean, I'm there five days a week,

         12  so I know, I mean, you get this very cruel choice

         13  sometimes, especially because these buses start

         14  breaking down in the cold weather, they're not

         15  really made to operate in that, and so you start

         16  getting gaps in services, crowds will start to pile

         17  up and then you get the very cruel choice of

         18  choosing to remain on an unsheltered sidewalk stop

         19  when you really want to get back home, or toughing

         20  it out on top of this bus in very cruel weather and

         21  they're not happy about it.

         22                 But also usually the thing is, too,

         23  people think it's a great thing and then 10 minutes

         24  they want to go back down.  Of course, our problem

         25  is by then we've hit another stop and some more
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          2  experimenters want to go up, so we end up there the

          3  whole time.  It can be quite a hardship.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Rajani, any

          5  Agencies you reached out to, the Department of

          6  Health?

          7                 MS. AAHIKANI: Absolutely.  We've

          8  actually -- I'm very happy to report that we've

          9  gotten a lot of support from the Council, in

         10  particular Council Members Mendez and Gioia are

         11  looking and exploring some real serious legislation.

         12                 We believe that it's a privilege to

         13  do business in this City and so, the City, as you

         14  know, licenses restaurants every year through an

         15  operating license and we are exploring legislation

         16  with those Council Members to think about how to

         17  really reward responsible restaurant owners who are

         18  doing things correctly and how to enforce some of

         19  these laws that are on the books.  We are also

         20  working with the Mayor's office and the Department

         21  of Health and Mental Hygiene and, like I said,

         22  they've actually taken steps forward on making sure

         23  that restaurant owners do have Workers' Comp

         24  insurance and are actually including questions on

         25  the operating license that will ask, "Who is your
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          2  insurance carrier?" So that restaurant owners know

          3  that it's a serious question.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: All right.

          5  We'll keep an eye out for the legislation.  I think

          6  that's interesting.

          7                 Rajani, you're here representing how

          8  many workers?

          9                 MS. AAHIKANI: We have a membership of

         10  about 1,600 restaurant workers but in the City

         11  there's 165,000 restaurant workers.  Unfortunately,

         12  only 1% are Unionized.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Andy, how

         14  many members are you representing?

         15                 MR. SYDOR: In my section is about 400

         16  members, in Local 225 is about 1,000.  Although 1

         17  thing to keep in perspective is there's only about

         18  1,500 licensed guides in the City at this point.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Andy, what's the

         20  average age of the bus, do you know?

         21                 MR. SYDOR: At this point, most of the

         22  buses are pretty young.  We do have some old ones

         23  that we really wish we had gotten rid of that were

         24  probably built in the '80s but, most of the red

         25  buses, the Alexanders, none older than 2001, so
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          2  they're pretty new.  But there are these older, neo-

          3  plans, it's kind of a dirty word with us at this

          4  point but they're a bit older.  The Alexanders, too,

          5  are equipped with heat and air- conditioning on the

          6  lower level, though we often have problems with them

          7  not working but they do have that option.  The older

          8  ones don't.  But there's only about a dozen of the

          9  older ones left and about 60 of the newer ones and

         10  they come in about 2 year installments, so there's

         11  some about 2001, some a couple years later, and some

         12  a little later than that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: A question for

         14  both of you.  If you could talk about the past 2

         15  years, say 2005 and 2004, injuries, and again -- a.

         16  Do you track them or do you know of a way that they

         17  are being tracked and secondly, have you seen an

         18  increase or decrease in these injuries or illnesses?

         19    Andy?

         20                 MR. SYDOR: One problem, as is my

         21  understanding, getting sick from weather doesn't

         22  count as an injury.  So, if I get pneumonia from

         23  being on the bus, that's -- I happened to get

         24  pneumonia while I was at work.  We've had, I think

         25  an increase in illnesses like that.  We also -- I
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          2  had somebody, a couple of people, lose their voice

          3  and stuff like that from working in the weather

          4  recently but we haven't been able to track that

          5  because it doesn't trigger Workmen's Comp.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's key, it

          7  doesn't.  It doesn't. Rajani?

          8                 MS. AAHIKANI: For our industry as

          9  well, it's very hard to track simply because there

         10  are so many restaurant owners who do not allow their

         11  workers to tell the hospitals that they were injured

         12  on the job.  We know that there is a real serious

         13  lack of training, about 60% of restaurant workers

         14  are reporting that they received no training on

         15  things like meat slicers and knives and things like

         16  that.  So, we know that the potential for real

         17  serious injuries is there, it's just hard to

         18  actually get the numbers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We had spoken at

         20  the earlier Hearing on December 4 regarding

         21  workplace violence, and many of the people you

         22  represent are immigrants --

         23                 MS. AAHIKANI: Yes --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And they're the

         25  reason, possibly, for under- reporting and obviously
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          2  that's an issue, as well.  But the training is very

          3  important, as you heard the earlier witnesses, there

          4  are some programs that seem to be quite helpful in

          5  preventing some injuries, so we're hopeful that

          6  maybe we can push through the restaurant owners some

          7  kind of preventive program.

          8                 MS. AAHIKANI: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Is that

         10  something you -- I'd like to work with you on.

         11                 MS. AAHIKANI: We definitely look

         12  forward to working with you on something like that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We'd like to

         14  welcome back Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito

         15  and she has a statement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: No, no,

         17  no.  I stepped out, I'm sorry, I had a meeting but I

         18  just want to thank, also, your group for the work

         19  that you're doing because I think it's been very

         20  diligent and very -- you're a good organization in

         21  terms of representing your members well.  So, I'm

         22  always encouraged by the work that you do and I am

         23  always glad to be supportive and that was fun the

         24  other day.

         25                 MS. AAHIKANI: While you were out of
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          2  the room, I did say thank you so much for standing

          3  with us in that cold, cold night in front of

          4  Restaurant Danielle.  It was so meaningful and I

          5  think that you being there and your words really

          6  both charged our members and also made the

          7  restaurant owners a little bit nervous, so thank you

          8  very much.  We appreciate it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: No

         10  problem, you're welcome and thank you for the work

         11  that you do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         13  much, Council Member.  I look forward to working

         14  with both you in the near future on this issue.

         15  Andy, if you can, any documentation, any letters you

         16  had sent the Administration, Consumer Affairs, if

         17  you could forward them to my office, that would be

         18  quite helpful.

         19                 MR. SYDOR: Okay.  All right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And again,

         21  Rajani, I look forward to working with you on the

         22  legislation.  This being our last panel, I want to

         23  thank all for being here today, I want to the

         24  Mayor's administration for staying in the room and

         25  staying with us at the Hearing, thank you Katie.
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          2  Again, we'll take the information from the December

          3  4th Hearing on workplace violence with today's

          4  Hearing on workplace injuries and, hopefully, in

          5  2007 we can make the City workplace a safer place to

          6  be.  Thank you very much everyone.  Merry Christmas,

          7  Happy Chanukah, have a good holiday season.

          8                 (The following written testimony was

          9  read into the record.)

         10

         11

         12

         13  Written Testimony of

         14  Guillermina E. Mejia, MPH

         15  Principal Program Coordinator

         16  District Council 37

         17  AFSCME, AFL- CIO

         18

         19

         20

         21                 Good afternoon.  My name is

         22  Guillermina Mejia, Principal Program Coordinator

         23  from the Safety and Health Department of District

         24  Council 37, AFSCME.  On behalf of the 121,000

         25  members and 50,000 retirees of District Council 37,
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          2  the every day heroes that make New York City run, I

          3  want to thank Chairman Addabbo and the members of

          4  the New York City Council for the opportunity to

          5  appear before you today.  District Council 37 is New

          6  York City's largest public employee union, organized

          7  into 56 locals.  I am here to speak on behalf of our

          8  members who are employed in over 1,000 job titles in

          9  dozens of City agencies and thousands of work sites

         10  throughout the five boroughs of New York.

         11                 Local Law 41 of 2004 required the

         12  Mayor to issue an annual report on the costs and

         13  numbers of Workers' Compensation claims established

         14  for city workers.  DC 37 strongly supported this

         15  legislative initiative.  We believed that the

         16  information contained within the annual report would

         17  assist the City agencies and the unions in

         18  identifying hazardous jobs, the types and

         19  frequencies of injuries being experienced by the

         20  City workforce, and the sources of unsafe conditions

         21  in the workplaces.  We also thought that a

         22  comprehensive review of the report and analysis

         23  would lead to the development and implementation of

         24  safety and health programs with a goal of reducing

         25  the numbers and severities of workplace injuries and
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          2  the filings for Workers' Compensation benefits.

          3  Such an undertaking would not only save money, but

          4  increase productivity with fewer days missed due to

          5  injury or illness.  Clearly that was the intent of

          6  Local Law 41.

          7                 After Local Law 41 was passed,

          8  District Council 37 attempted to meet with the New

          9  York City Law Department to discuss the format of

         10  the report.  All of our requests to meet were

         11  rebuffed.  Sadly, when the report was issued in

         12  March of this year, we found that, while the report

         13  essentially complies with the law and provides some

         14  important information, it falls far short of what is

         15  needed.  Had we been able to meet with the Law

         16  Department, the report may have been crafted as a

         17  more useful tool.

         18                 The problem with the report is that

         19  the information to be that must be conveyed [sic] By

         20  City agencies to the Mayor's Office under

         21  Administrative Code Section 12- 127(c)(1) is not the

         22  same as the information that ultimately is included

         23  in the annual report pursuant to Administrative Code

         24  Section 12- 127(c)(3).  While the 2006 report

         25  provides some useful aggregate data such as the
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          2  expenses paid thus far for Workers' Compensation

          3  claims per agency, the absence of job titles and

          4  details about the nature of the injury (diagnosis)

          5  as examples, seriously weakens our ability to use

          6  the data effectively.

          7                 We, therefore, propose that you

          8  consider amending Administrative Code Section 12-

          9  127(c)(3) as outlined below (in the written

         10  testimony):

         11                 Local Law 41 (2004)

         12            12- 127(c)(3)   ... Such report shall

         13  include, but not be limited to:

         14                 I. A list of each agency;

         15                 ii. The number of accidents occurring

         16  within each job title in each agency;

         17                 iii. The number of accidents

         18  involving lost time within each job title in each

         19  agency;

         20                 iv. The number of days of lost time

         21  due to Workers' Compensation injuries within each

         22  job title in each agency;

         23                 v. The total amount of wages and

         24  Workers' Compensation paid by the City for

         25  disability to injured persons within each job title
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          2  in each agency;

          3                 vi. The total amount of medical

          4  expenses paid by the City for diagnosis and

          5  treatment of injured persons within each job title

          6  in each agency;

          7                 vii. The number and nature of the

          8  injuries suffered by persons within each job title

          9  in each agency with relation to body parts, such as

         10  spine, lower extremity, upper extremity, pulmonary,

         11  etc.;

         12                 viii the causative factor of the

         13  injuries suffered by persons within each job title

         14  in each agency in categories, such as lifting,

         15  assault, trauma, occupational/repetitive stress,

         16  etc.;

         17                 ix. The average and median periods of

         18  lost time for injured persons within each job title

         19  in each agency;

         20                 Finally, we believe that a new

         21  subdivision 12- 127(d) is needed to compel the

         22  Mayor's office to issue the annual report in a

         23  format that permits analysis.  Recommended language

         24  is as follows:

         25                 D. The Mayor shall issue the report
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          2  in both written and electronic formats.  The

          3  electronic file shall be readily usable by generally

          4  available computer programs that permit the data to

          5  be searched and sorted by the recipients of the

          6  report,  Use of Microsoft Excel shall be deemed to

          7  comply with this subdivision.

          8  I thank you again for the opportunity to testify

          9  today.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 3:05 p.m.)
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          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, SUSAN FERRARA, do hereby certify
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         11  of the within proceeding.
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